
 
 
WWW.WDBCCC.COM  

 
Youth Committee Agenda 

March 14, 2023 
12:00 p.m. – 1:30 p.m. 

4071 Port Chicago Hwy., Conference Room A  
Concord, Ca 94520 

 
12:00 PM PRESENTATION ITEM 
  P1 Contra Costa Health Services 
   Health Ambassador Program 
    Via ZOOM 
     
12:40 PM  CALL TO ORDER AND REMINDER OF POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 PUBLIC COMMENT 
  INTRODUCTIONS  
   
12:35 PM CONSENT AGENDA 
  C1  Approve January 10, 2022 Youth Committee Minutes 
 
12:45 PM DISCUSSION ITEMS 
  D1 In-person Meetings – Brown Act 
  D2 Characteristics of Quality Work Experience/Internships 
  D3 Youth Voice in Decision-Making 
  D4 Youth Committee – Presentations & Field Visits 
   
1:05 PM UPDATES/INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
  U1 RFI #744 Measure X Youth Center Status Update 
  U2 Day at the Capitol Update 
  U3 NAWDP Youth Conference Recap 
  U4 WDB Staffing Update 
    
1:15 PM CHAIRS’ REPORT AND NEXT AGENDA ITEMS 
 
1:30 PM ADJOURN 
 
Future Youth Committee Meetings: May 9, 2023 
 
 
Any appropriate public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by the Workforce 
Development Board and any of its committees to a majority of members of the Workforce Development and/or its committees, 
less than 72 hours prior to that meeting are available and for public inspection at 4071 Port Chicago Highway, Concord during 
normal business hours.  The Workforce Development Board will provide reasonable accommodations for individuals with 
disabilities planning to attend Board meetings.  Arrangements can be made by contacting the Board at 925-671-4560

Our Mission:  The Workforce Development Board of 
Contra Costa County exists to promote a workforce 
development system that meets the needs of 
businesses, job seekers, and workers in order to ensure 
a strong, vibrant economy in Contra Costa County. 

http://www.wdbccc.com/


 

 

Workforce Development Board (WDB) of Contra Costa County 
        Youth Committee Charter 

 
Charter Element Charter Agreement Information 

Business Objective 
The primary objective of the WDB Youth Committee is to Increase the number of youth and young adults, 16-24, who are well 
prepared for postsecondary vocational training, further education, and/or a career, with an emphasis on serving the most 
vulnerable and underserved populations and those from low-income communities. 

Case for Action 

It is the vision of the WDBCCC to support a network that creates and promotes dynamic education systems, high-performing 
businesses, and a prosperous local economy with an abundance of high quality jobs and skilled workers to fill them.   Our 
mission is to promote a workforce development system that meets the needs of businesses, job seekers, and workers, to 
support a strong and vibrant economy in Contra Costa County.  As we advance our work toward realizing our vision a number 
of key factors drive our work: 
● Good jobs in today’s economy and labor market require workers to have a growing level of knowledge and skill in order 

to compete for them; 
● The employment gap is widening between those with higher levels of education and credentials and those who lack 

them;  
● Jobs are growing at both the high-skill and low-skill end of the labor market, while growth of “middle skill” jobs has been 

lagging; however, the retirement of baby boomers from the labor force will create openings in nearly every industry and 
occupation; 

● The emerging workforce does not have the education and skill-sets needed to perform many of these jobs, as manifested 
by a continued lag in the educational attainment levels of young people (although beginning to show some signs of 
improvement, student preparedness for post-secondary education remains very low); and 

● The difference between supply and demand indicates that there is a “skills gap” between what most emerging workers 
have to offer and what businesses need, creating the urgency to develop and support new strategies that can better 
equip and train people for jobs in today’s economy. 

Requirements 

The WDB Youth Committee will: 
● Work with partners to develop systems that effectively engage employers in career development and work-based 

learning opportunities for youth and young adults to learn about, explore, and prepare for careers; 
● Strengthen collaborations between the local workforce system and other programs and systems that seek to help 

youth with significant barriers to employment; 
● Develop and implement strategies to direct Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) and other 

resources to serve youth and young adults most in need and support their success; 
● Collaborate with and support career-focused strategies at high schools and community colleges, particularly those 

aligned with WDB priority industry sectors; 
● Work with partners to increase opportunities for high school graduates, dropouts and disconnected youth to 

transition into postsecondary education, training and careers; 
and 

● Work with Community Colleges, Apprenticeship Programs, Trade Schools and others to offer more opportunities 
for disconnected youth to achieve success. 

Boundaries / Guidelines 
The Youth Committee advises and influences the direction and implementation of youth services strategies as outlined the 
WDB 2013-2017 Strategic Plan. 

Team Membership 

The Youth Committee brings together leaders from business, economic development, education, labor, community-based 
organizations, youth/young adults and the public sector. The Youth Committee chair(s) is a member of the WDB Executive 
Committee and some members of the Youth Committee hold a seat on the Workforce Development Board. Other Youth 
Committee members are recruited and engaged to represent a particular perspective or constituency. The Youth Committee 
and the WDB work on behalf of the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors and the businesses and residents of Contra 
Costa County. 
The WDB and the Youth Committee also draw upon the knowledge and expertise of other individuals and organizations that 
are not members of the WDB and occasionally form Ad Hoc committees to conduct specific activities. 

Timing The work of the Youth Committee is aligned with the timeline for the WDB’s Strategic Plan. 

Resources 

The WDB and the Youth Committee provide and/or support convening and networking functions that draw together a wide 
spectrum of stakeholders that contribute to the health of the local economy and prepare residents for effective participation 
in the workforce. These include local and regional businesses, economic development experts and organizations, public 
agencies, education, labor, and community-based organizations.  

Review Process 

The Youth Committee monitors and reports its progress at regular committee meetings, the WDB Executive Committee and 
full WDB member meetings as appropriate. 
Progress against the WDB Strategic Plan is reviewed at regular intervals as determined by the WDB and any of its relevant 
governing authorities at the local, state, and/or federal level 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



YOUTH COMMITTEE PAGE 1 OF 1 AGENDA ITEM P1 
MARCH 14, 2023   HEALTH SERVICES HEALTH AMBASSADORS PROGRAM 
 
 

 

 
 
 

DATE: March 14, 2023 

TO: Youth Committee 

FROM: Noramah Burch, Workforce Services Specialist Youth Program Manager 

RE: Presenter Bios - Health Services Health Ambassador Program 

 
BIOGRAPHY OF SPEAKERS 
 
Sabrina Villaro 
Sabrina’s prior experience involves working with communities in East Contra Costa County, as well as the 
historic Lakeview community in San Francisco, specifically working with the latinx and African residents. 
Her career in public health began as one of the very first Community Health Ambassadors for the CCHS 
Adult Ambassador Program, and as a Disaster Service Worker for San Francisco Department of Public 
Health, where she was heavily involved with carrying out the mass vaccination distribution plans during 
the peak of the pandemic in March 2021 for both counties. Following her work in community outreach, 
she pivoted to learn about HIV clinical research at SFDPH – Bridge HIV, primarily being engaged with 
LGBTQ+ populations and overseeing quality control methods for ongoing clinical studies. Returning to 
Contra Costa County this year, she is now one of the Project Coordinators for the Workforce Health 
Ambassador Program. Sabrina graduated from San Francisco State University with a Bachelor’s in Public 
Health and Minor in Women’s Health Issues 
 
Eyana Rodgers 
Eyana Rodgers (she/her) is a Program Coordinator for the new Contra Costa Health Workforce Health 
Ambassadors. Her public health journey began at the top of the pandemic when she joined the Contra 
Costa Health Services (CCHS) Office of the Director as a Program Coordinator for the Health Career 
Pathways Program (HCP), where she curates & facilitates public health curriculum to students across the 
county and coordinates summer internships that further the principles taught in-the-classroom. Through 
her work with HCP, Eyana has been able to foster her passion for influencing change by uplifting youth 
voices and providing them with the understanding needed to rectify injustices they see and experience. 
These interests also carry over into her work as a Youth Coordinator for the CCHS COVID-19 Youth and 
Young Adult Ambassador Program, where county youth take to their social media accounts to inform 
their peers of safe COVID-19 practices and encourage mental health awareness. Eyana graduated from 
California State University, Northridge with a Bachelor’s in Psychology, and a Minor in Marketing. 
 
 
 
For any questions, please contact Noramah Burch, Workforce Services Specialist Youth Program                      
Manager at 925-671-4532 or email at nburch@ehsd.cccounty.us 

A3 P1 



January 10, 2023 PAGE 1 OF 3 C1 

 
WWW.WDBCCC.COM              

 
Youth Committee Minutes 

Tuesday, January 10, 2023 
Via ZOOM MEETING 

 
The Youth Committee met on Tuesday, January 10, 2023 via a ZOOM Meeting at 12:00 pm. 
 
P1 – PRESENTATION 
Family Harvest Farm – Hanna Hodgson Katzman, Associate Director 

Family Harvest Farm is a new program of the John Muir Land Trust that protects and cares for 
open space, ranches, farms, parkland and shoreline in the East Bay, ensuring land sustains life and 
connects people to the land. Family Harvest Farm (FHF) has stewardship over 3,500 acres and 17 
properties in Contra Costa County (CCC) and Alameda County. The farm began operations in March 2020 
in Pittsburg by two master gardeners, one inspired by his adopted foster children, to engage foster youth 
and adults to participate in a local food system that encourages healthy living, nurtures the environment, 
and feeds the community. 
 Foster youth ages 18-24 are employed in apprentice one positions, work for 12 months, 20 hours 
a week Tuesday thru Friday. FHF hosts 50 foster children and chaperons onsite, and connects with 300 
foster youth and family members through outreach and offsite produce distribution. The young adults are 
referred by collaborating county and state agencies. In partnership with the CCC Workforce Development 
Board (WDB), FHF secured a grant enabling them to pay $17.50/hour. The second year program has 
apprenticeship II positions with increased leadership opportunities, and a third position is an internship. 
FHF has newly hired their first intern as Greenhouse Manager. She spoke about her experience and growth 
with FHF, and is now in a work/study program at DVC to get their horticulture certification.  
 FHF programs build skills in regenerative farming, nutrition, career shops, financial literacy, and 
socio- emotional skills such as emotional health, interpersonal management, practice receiving/giving 
feedback, goal setting, and employment goals. Annually FHF distributes produce and hosts workshops for 
2,600 community members. Visitors are welcome Tuesdays thru Fridays, 10am to 2pm. 
Questions and Comments: 

• A Youth Committee member has witnessed how these services are transformational, having 
volunteered at a farmers market and an edibles program. 

 
Substituting as Chair, Tom Hansen called the meeting to order at 12:37pm, and reminded everyone of 
the potential conflict of interest.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
ATTENDANCE 
MEMBERS PRESENT - Bill Mahoney, Sean Laurant, Drew Douglas, Gina Del Carlo, Heather Fontanilla, Jerry 
Aranas, Mayling Alvarado, Tom Hansen, Alejandra Chamberlain (Proxy), Vittoria Abbate (Proxy) 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT – Mike McGill, Robert Muller, Lynn Mackey, Shawn Einck 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Nichol Carranza, Timothy Jeffries, Hannah Hodgson, Britt Wade, Mary Cherry, Shanel 
Kendall, Brooke Terry, Davina Kerrelola, Esperanza Valarde-Ellis, Steven Addison, Erin Larkins, Quinallison 
Dovey 
 

C1 

http://www.wdbccc.com/


January 10, 2023 PAGE 2 OF 3 C1 

WDB STAFF PRESENT: Maureen Nelson, Verneda Clapp, LaTosha Stockholm, Jed Silver, Rochelle Soriano, 
Patricia Conley 
 
INTRODUCTIONS  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
C1          Approve November 8, 2022 Youth Committee Minutes 
Motion/Second  Bill Mahoney/Sean Laurant 
Motion   Approved 
 
AYES: Bill Mahoney, Sean Laurant, Drew Douglas, Gina Del Carlo, Heather Fontanilla, Jerry Aranas, Mayling 
Alvarado, Tom Hansen, Alejandra Chamberlain (Proxy) 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Mike McGill, Robert Muller, Lynn Mackey, Shawn Einck 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
DISCUSSION ITEM 
D1 Youth Voice in Decision Making 
The Chair requested that discussion continue at the next Youth Committee meeting on this discussion 
item.  Seven bullet points on Youth Voice in Decision Making, listed in the November 8 Youth Committee 
meeting minutes, was included in the agenda packet.  
 
D2 Youth Committee – Presentations & Field Visits 
A list of Youth Committee presentations from January 2020 to January 2023 was included in the agenda 
packet. Committee members offered suggestions for future Field Visits: 

• The John Muir Land Trust Family Harvest Farm.  
• Pre pandemic there were suggestions to visit something on Bethel Island and at a technology-

based program. There was a list of suggestions started then.  
• Voices Napa Youth Center founded by foster youth, a little far but worth it. They do WIOA services 

out of their converted house. 
• RISE Youth Center in Richmond. 
• Marathon has a program in partnership with Habitat for Humanity. They take construction 

students from Martinez, Pittsburg, Mt. Diablo and Concord High to a Habitat for Humanity 
construction site to apply their construction knowledge. 16 years and older without experience 
can view, and 18 years and older can use some power tools and be on scaffolding. Usually there 
is room for volunteers if anyone from this group is interested. Dates can be provided after they 
have been arranged with the schools. 

• There is an on-ramp to the trades program in Marin for transitional age youth 18 to 26 years old. 
They collaborate with Adult Education and the local Workforce Development Board (WDB). Some 
youth are from public housing that have acquired living wage opportunities. 

• Youth Uprising in Oakland designed by youth, with creativity and indoor/outdoor spaces. 
The Chair requested that this discussion item also be continued at the next Youth Committee meeting. 
 
UPDATES/INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
U1 RFI #744 Measure X Youth Center Status Update  
One applicant was selected of the two submitted, when the Request for Information (RFI) closed in 
September 2022. In December 2022, the Employment and Human Services (EHSD) Contract Unit notified 
WDB that there was a third applicant inadvertently omitted. Because of this, the RFI will be released again 
in January 2023. Previous applicants will be able to apply again along with new applicants. Due process 
will follow and without further delays, by the end of March there will be one applicant selected. 



January 10, 2023 PAGE 3 OF 3 C1 

 
CHAIR’S REPORT AND NEXT AGENDA ITEMS 
No report. 
 
Next Youth Committee Meeting:  March 14, 2023 
 
THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 12:58 pm        
Respectfully Submitted, 
Patricia Conley, Business Services Representative  
 
/pc 



YOUTH COMMITTEE PAGE 1 OF 2      AGENDA ITEM D1 
MARCH 15, 2023   TELECONFERENCING OPTIONS UNDER BROWN ACT 

 
 

 

 
 
 

DATE: March 14, 2023 

TO: Youth Committee 

FROM: Tamia Brown, Executive Director 

RE: Teleconferencing Options Under the Brown Act 

 
On February 1, 2023, County Counsel notified the Board of Supervisors (BOS) that once the statewide 
state of emergency is lifted on February 28, 2023, the BOS and Board-appointed bodies, such as the 
Workforce Development Board and its subcommittees, may continue to attend remotely under either 
1) the new Brown Act teleconferencing rules or 2) the traditional Brown Act teleconferencing option. In 
addition, hybrid meetings which allow in-person and remote attendance, may continue but some form 
of remote participation for the public must be in place in order to use the new “just cause” or 
“emergency circumstances” options (described below). 
 

• New Brown Act teleconferencing rules.  Board members may attend remotely for "just cause" 
or due to "emergency circumstances." Certain legal requirements must be met and members 
may attend remotely a limited number of times per year. 

o For just cause, the member must notify the body before or at the start of the meeting, 
citing: 1) caregiving obligations, 2) contagious illness, 3) disability, or 4) travel on official 
business. 

o For emergencies, the member must submit a short description of the physical or family 
medical emergency, and the body must take action on the request at the meeting. It 
must be approved by majority vote. The requestor may not vote. 

o Body must provide a two-way audiovisual platform and the member must participate 
through both audio and visual technology. 

o Member must disclose whether individuals at least 18 years old are in the room. 
o At least a quorum must participate in person. 
o Remote option limited to two meetings per individual per calendar year, and a member 

may not use this option more than three consecutive months or 20% of meetings. 
o All votes must be taken by roll call. 
o The agenda need not be posted at the remote location, include the address of the 

remote location, or provide for public access to the remote location. 
 

• Traditional Brown Act teleconference option.  Board members may participate in meetings by 
teleconference if the location from where they are participating is listed on the agenda and 
other legal requirements are met:  

 
o At least a quorum must participate from locations in the County. 
o Each teleconference location and meeting location must be shown on agenda for the 

meeting. In addition, agenda must provide opportunity for members of the public to  

A3 D1 



YOUTH COMMITTEE PAGE 2 OF 2      AGENDA ITEM D1 
MARCH 15, 2023   TELECONFERENCING OPTIONS UNDER BROWN ACT 

 
 

 
 
 
 
give comment from each teleconference location. 

o In addition to the usual agenda-posting agenda locations and the County website, an 
agenda must be posted at each teleconference location at least 96 hours in advance of 
the meeting under the County's Better Government Ordinance, or at least 24 in advance 
for a special meeting. 

o Each teleconference location must be open and accessible to members of the public. 
o All votes taken during a teleconference meeting must be by roll call. 

 
See a side-by-side comparison of requirements, see the table “Teleconference Meeting Participation 
Options” in County Counsel’s memo, attached. 
 
NOTE: Beginning January 1, 2026, only the traditional Brown Act teleconference rules will be 
available. 

 
 
For any questions, please contact Tamia Brown, Executive Director at 925-671-4514 or email at 
tbrown1@ehsd.cccounty.us 

 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
D1a - "Teleconferencing Options Under the Brown Act for Members of County Boards, Commissions, 
and Committees," memo from Office of the County Counsel, Contra Costa, to the Board of Supervisors  

 
 
 

file://ehsdfshare.ehsd.ds.contra-costa.org/private/Workforce%20%20Development%20%20Board/Admin/WDB%20Management/YOUTH%20COMMITTEE/_Youth%20Council%20Packets/YC%20Packets%202023/03.14.23/D1a%20Brown%20Act%20Updates%202023.pdf
file://ehsdfshare.ehsd.ds.contra-costa.org/private/Workforce%20%20Development%20%20Board/Admin/WDB%20Management/YOUTH%20COMMITTEE/_Youth%20Council%20Packets/YC%20Packets%202023/03.14.23/D1a%20Brown%20Act%20Updates%202023.pdf


 
 

 

YOUTH COMMITTEE PAGE 1 OF 1 AGENDA ITEM D2 
MARCH 14, 2023  WEX INTERNSHIPS POLICY REVIEW 
   

 
 

 

DATE: March 14, 2022 

TO: Youth Committee 

FROM: Noramah Burch, Workforce Services Specialist. Youth Program Manager 

RE: Characteristics of Quality WEXs/Internships and Review of Current Policy 

 
A. BACKGROUND 

The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) places increased focus on work-based 
learning for youth by broadly defining work experience and establishing a minimum expenditure 
requirement (20%) for work-based learning activities. 
 
Under WIOA, an internship or work experience is defined as a planned, structured, time-limited 
learning experience that takes place in a workplace. Work experience may be paid or unpaid, as 
appropriate. An internship or work experience may be arranged within the private for profit sector, 
the non-profit sector, or the public sector. 
 
Paid and unpaid work experiences and/or internships must include academic, occupational education 
and may include the following types of work experience: 
 
• Summer employment opportunities and other employment opportunities available 

throughout the school year 
• Pre-Apprenticeship programs 
• Internships and job shadowing 
• On-the-job training opportunities 

 
B. CURRENT SITUATION 
Today’s discussion invites review of the current Youth WEX Policy. This discussion will guide the 
updating of the Workforce Policy Bulletin #01-16 Youth WEX Policy if needed. 
 

1. What are characteristics of quality work experiences/internships? 
2. Should the wex policy include guidelines for wage increases for youth? 

a. If so, at what point in a wex/internship, should a wage increase be considered? 
3. Do the Private Sector Subsidy Qualifiers (page 2) have an impact on the availability of private-

sector hosted internships? 
4. Is there enough flexibility in the current policy to promote a wide array of options (in both the 

public sector and private sector) for young people? 
  
C. ATTACHMENT 
D2a      Youth WEX Policy   
 

For any questions, please contact Noramah Burch, Workforce Services Specialist, Youth Program 
Manager at 925-671-4532 or email at nburch@ehsd.cccounty.us  

D2 



 
 
 
 
WORKFORCE POLICY BULLETIN    #01-16 - NEW                
 

    
DATE: January 21, 2016 
      
TO:  Contracted Service Providers 

FROM:  Stephen Baiter, Executive Director    
  Workforce Development Board 
 
SUBJECT:        Youth WEX Policy 
 

 
Background: 
The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) places increased focus on work-based learning for 
youth by broadly defining work experience and establishing a minimum expenditure requirement (20%) for 
work-based learning activities. 
 
Under WIOA section 134(c)(2)(A)(xii)(VII), an internship or work experience is defined as a planned, structured, 
time-limited learning experience that takes place in a workplace.  Work experience may be paid or unpaid, as 
appropriate.  An internship or work experience may be arranged within the private for profit sector, the non-
profit sector, or the public sector. 
 
Paid and unpaid work experiences and/or internships must include academic, occupational education and may 
include the following types of work experience: 

 
• Summer employment opportunities and other employment opportunities available throughout the 

school year 
• Pre-Apprenticeship programs 
• Internships and job shadowing 
• On-the-job training opportunities 

 
Policy: 
Youth Work Experience Priority – 20% Spending Requirement  
At minimum, 20 percent of WIOA Youth funds must be spent to provide in-school youth and out-of-school 
youth with work experiences.  WIOA youth programs must track and report program funds spent on paid and 
unpaid work experiences, including wages and staff costs for the development and management of work 
experiences.  The 20 percent work experience spending requirement: 

• Is Not tracked separately for In-School and Out-of-School youth 
• Is calculated AFTER administrative costs have been subtracted from the total amount of youth 

funds. 
 
 

 
W O R K F O R C E  D E V E L O P M E N T  B O A R D  O F  C O N T R A  C O S T A  C O U N T Y  

3 0 0  E l l i n w o o d  W a y  •  3 r d  F l o o r  •  P l e a s a n t  H i l l ,  C A   9 4 5 2 3  
T e l .  ( 9 2 5 )  6 0 2 - 6 8 0 0  •  F a x  ( 9 2 5 )  6 0 2 - 6 8 0 2  

W e b s i t e :  w w w . w d b c c . c o m  

http://www.wdbcc.com/


 
 

 

WEX Guidelines 
• The duration of a paid WEX activity shall be based on the needs of the participant as 

documented in his/her Individual Service Strategy/Career Action Plan – generally 120 – 520 
hours in accordance with the quality standards adopted by Earn and Learn East Bay. 

• A Work-based learning plan and evaluation tool will be used 
• Wexs need to be linked to an occupational goal and career pathway 
• Participants and Worksite Supervisors shall receive an orientation prior to the start of a paid 

work experience 
• Participation in a paid wex does/shall not preclude an individual from receiving supportive 

services such as uniforms, work-clothing, tools, transportation assistance, childcare assistance, 
and other supportive services as needed. 

• Payment of incentives are allowable but must be tied to the completion of measurable 
outcomes.  Incentives are not to take the place of wages and may be most appropriate for 
completion of an academic component or learning objectives completed via short or one-time 
un-paid work experiences such as a job-shadow. 

• The wex must be monitored by the coordinating provider/agency at least once during the 
course of the activity. 

 
Work Experience Subsidies 
When possible, the employer will pay the wages to the youth for the term of the work experience.  If a public 
sector or non-profit employer is unable to pay for the wages, WIOA funds may be used to subsidize the WEX.   
 
To subsidize a Private Sector internship or work-experience, one or more of the following criteria must be in 
place and documented. 
 
Earn & Learn East Bay Private Sector Subsidy Qualifiers: 

• There is an excellent chance that the employer will hire the youth after the subsidized summer 
experience 

• The subsidy will leverage additional resources (Employer will make other financial contributions 
to support the experience). 

• The experience is a team-based project with significant contributions from the employer 
partner. 

• The experience offers an opportunity in a career or field of interest that would otherwise be 
unavailable to the student/youth. 

• The experience offers a youth/student with marginal skills and/or other barriers the opportunity 
to develop confidence and experience a successful placement that would otherwise not be 
possible. 

• Placement would be an economic development opportunity for a small business that is poised 
for growth. 

 
Labor Laws 
Clients who participate in a paid work experience activity must be paid in wages that comply with federal, 
state, and local minimum wage requirements.  Worksites must also adhere to other local, state, and federal 
labor laws.  The U.S. Department of Labor and the California Department of Industrial Relations provide 
requirements on school attendance, wages, allowable working hours, age requirements, restrictions, 
employer requirements, work permits, job safety and working conditions.  Providers are expected to create 
experiences for their clients that meet all applicable labor law requirements. 



 
 

 

 
Work Experience Employee Files – for paid WEX 
Providers must maintain full documentation of the work experience in the participant’s case file.  These 
documents verify that the client is authorized to work in the U.S. and has completed the required employee 
paperwork. When wages are fully paid by a private employer (not subsidized with WIOA dollars), copies of the 
required documentation are acceptable with the understanding that the originals will be made available for 
review by local, State and Federal monitors as needed. 
 

WEX Employee files should include: 
• Completed, signed and verified I-9 Form with back-up documentation 
• Completed, signed W4 Form 
• Current work permit for youth under 18 years old 
• Emergency contact information 
• Copy of timesheets of all pay periods during which the client worked 
• Verification that client received paychecks for all pay periods worked 
• Progress Reports/Performance evaluations 

 
Disclaimer 
This policy is based on an initial reading of the statute, the Notice of Proposed Rulemaking released by USDOL 
as well as guidance issued by California EDD. This policy is subject to change as additional federal regulations 
and state guidance are released and as quality improvement reviews are conducted. 

 
Citations & References: 
WIOA Public Law 113-128) Sections 3, 107, 116, 123, 128, and 129(c) (2) (E) and (c) (4) 
Title 20 CFR NPRM 681.600 and 681.640 

 
If you have any questions regarding this Workforce Policy Bulletin, please contact Gina DelCarlo at 
gdelcarlo@ehsd.cccounty.us or 925-602-6800. 
 

 
cc: Kathy Gallagher, Director, EHSD  

Mike Roetzer, EHSD Director of Administration  
Donna Van Wert, One-Stop Operator Consortium Administrator 
Maureen Nelson, Assistant Administrator, One-Stop Operations  
Bob Whatford, Workforce Services Specialist, One-Stop Operations 
Gina Del Carlo, Workforce Services Specialist, Workforce Development Board 
Jeff Shoji, Business Systems Analyst, Workforce Development Board 
Noramah Burch, Workforce Services Specialist, Workforce Development Board 
Alejandra Chamberlain, Youth Development Manager, Contra Costa County Office of Education 
Ruth Barajas, Director, Bay Area Community Resources 
Maryam Adalat, Mt. Diablo Unified District 
Merl Craft, Future Build Program Manager 
Gabriel Garcia, EDD WSD Regional Advisor 

 

mailto:gdelcarlo@ehsd.cccounty.us


 
 

 

YOUTH COMMITTEE PAGE 1 OF 1 AGENDA ITEM D3   
MARCH 14, 2023  YOUTH VOICE DECISION MAKING 

 
 

 

DATE: March 14, 2022 

TO: Youth Committee 

FROM: Noramah Burch, Workforce Services Specialist. Youth Program Manager 

RE: Youth Voice in Decision Making 

 
With the creation of Measure X Youth Centers and the quest for continuous improvement in existing 
Youth Programs, this item is a carry-over discussion item from the November 2022 and January 2023 
Youth Committee meetings.  
 
November 8, 2022 Youth Committee Meeting Minutes: 
D2 Youth Voice in Decision Making 

• When toured the RYSE Center in Richmond, there was youth involvement and decision making 
in every aspect of its creation and development. This is why it is successful. Youth are using it; 
their voice gave them what they wanted. 

• Have a meeting of just the students so they are comfortable sharing. Often they are intimidated 
and nervous in a room full of adults. 

• Get what the deliverables are that the youth want.  
• Invite the youth that helped with the RYSE Center to share with us. Not a problem unless RYSE 

applied for the RFP, and based on their suggestions they were selected; this could possibly be 
a conflict of interest. 

• There are providers in central and east county that have access to youth, from our own 
Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act (WIOA) programs, community based organizations 
(CBO), city youth programs, school districts, and foster liaisons. 

• K-14 alignment and community college students may want to share. Learning Aligned 
Employment Program (LAEP) awarded $500 million dollars from State of CA for wages for 
internships. Students paid doing a research project to find best practices for Youth Centers, with 
mentors helping them with clear goals. 

• LAEP may not be ready/available for our timeline. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For any questions, please contact Noramah Burch, Workforce Services Specialist, Youth Program 
Manager at 925-671-4532 or email at nburch@ehsd.cccounty.us 
 

D3 



 
 

 

YOUTH COMMITTEE PAGE 1 OF 2 AGENDA ITEM D4 
MARCH 14, 2023  FIELD VISITS 

 
 

 
DATE: March 14, 2022 

TO: Youth Committee 

FROM: Noramah Burch, Workforce Services Specialist. Youth Program Manager 

RE: Youth Committee – Presentations and Field Visits 

 
This is a carry-over item from prior committee agendas. 
Prior to Covid-19, the Youth Committee conducted site visits to tour facilities and learn about other 
programs in the Bay Area.  The last in-person site visit was to the Treasure Island Job Corps Center in 
2019.  
 
Now that the Covid 19 state of emergency has been lifted and organizations are beginning to return to 
in-person meetings, this item invites committee members to consider the following: 

1. How many site visits should take place in a year? 
2. Is there an ideal time of year for site visits? 
3. Which programs are the Committee Members most interested in seeing at the May meeting? 

 
Attached is a list of Presenters from the last 3 years; many of them have invited the Youth Committee 
to come for a site visit.  In addition to organizations who have presented, the committee offered 
suggestions for future field visits. 
 
From January  10, Youth Committee Meeting Minutes 
D2 Youth Committee – Presentations & Field Visits 
A list of Youth Committee presentations from January 2020 to January 2023 was included in the agenda 
packet. Committee members offered suggestions for future Field Visits: 

• The John Muir Land Trust Family Harvest Farm.  
• Pre pandemic there were suggestions to visit something on Bethel Island and at a technology-

based program. There was a list of suggestions started then.  
• Voices Napa Youth Center founded by foster youth, a little far but worth it. They do WIOA 

services out of their converted house. 
• RISE Youth Center in Richmond. 
• Marathon has a program in partnership with Habitat for Humanity. They take construction 

students from Martinez, Pittsburg, Mt. Diablo and Concord High to a Habitat for Humanity 
construction site to apply their construction knowledge. 16 years and older without experience 
can view, and 18 years and older can use some power tools and be on scaffolding. Usually there 
is room for volunteers if anyone from this group is interested. Dates can be provided after they 
have been arranged with the schools. 

• There is an on-ramp to the trades program in Marin for transitional age youth 18 to 26 years 
old. They collaborate with Adult Education and the local Workforce Development Board (WDB). 
Some youth are from public housing that have acquired living wage opportunities. 

• Youth Uprising in Oakland designed by youth, with creativity and indoor/outdoor spaces. 
 

D4 



YOUTH COMMITTEE PAGE 2 OF 2 AGENDA ITEM D4 
MARCH 14, 2023  FIELD VISITS 

 
 
 
The Chair requested that this discussion item also be continued at the next Youth Committee meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
D4a    Presenter Lists and Organizations 
 
For any questions, please contact Noramah Burch, Workforce Services Specialist, Youth Program 
Manager at 925-671-4532 or email at nburch@ehsd.cccounty.us 
 



Youth Committee Meeting Presentations from 2020 D4a
Date Business/Presentation Location Presenter Name Title

1/10/2023
John Muir Land Trust Family Harvest Farm Garden 
Apprenticeship Program

Pittsburg, CA Hanna Hodgson Katzman Associate Director

11/8/2022 Cal Maritime (CSU Maritime Academy) Vallejo, CA Veronica Boe
Senior Director Professional & Continuing 
Education

9/13/2022 PilotCity Derick Lee Founder
Steven Addison Conservation Program Coordinator

Brian Hickey
Chief Fiscal Officer/Chief Operating 
Officer

Drew Douglas
Senior Dean of Workforce & Economic 
Development

Tara Sanders
Workforce & Economic Development 
Manager

1/11/2022 Los Medanos Process Technology Program Pittsburg, CA Robert Muller
Learning & Development Manager for 
PBF Energy at the Martinez Refining 
Company

11/9/2021 Bitwise Industries - Tech Apprenticeship Oakland, CA Shelley Manser

9/14/2021 Boatworks Marine Tech Apprenticeship Sausalito, CA Bruce Holaday
8/10/2021 Gladeo: Career Navigation Platform Michelle Cho CEO & Co-Founder

Elizabeth Avalos
Alicia Bell

3/9/2021 WDBCCC Local Plan - Stakholder Input Steve Shultz, Glen Price Group
1/12/2021 National Youth Employment Coalition Rashaun Bennett Senior Program Associate
11/10/2020 Life-Skills Empowerment Group Shawn Einck President & Educator
8/11/2020 PilotCity San Leandro, CA Derick Lee

Love Never Fails Vanessa Russel &/or Monica Wilson

Job Corps Treasure Island Rosalina Rosas
6/9/2020 Earn & Learn Summer Metrix Learning Pilot
5/12/2020 Adhoc RFP Meeting

Drew Douglas
Senior Dean of Workforce & Economic 
Development

Tara Sanders
Workforce & Economic Development 
Manager

7/14/2020

4/14/2020
Contra Costa Community College District (4CD) Perkins 
Career & Technical Education (CTE)

Civicorps7/12/2022

3/8/2022 Contra Costa Community College District

5/11/2021 CCCOE Remote Work Experience



 
 

 

YOUTH COMMITTEE PAGE 1 OF 1 AGENDA ITEM D2 
MARCH 14, 2023  WEX INTERNSHIPS POLICY REVIEW 
   

 
 

 

DATE: March 14, 2022 

TO: Youth Committee 

FROM: LaTosha Stockholm, Workforce Services Specialist & CCWorks Program Manager 

RE:        RFI #744 Measure X Youth Centers Status Update 

 

CURRENT SITUATION 
The Request for Interest (RFI) to procure a consultant to conduct stakeholder and community 
engagement in regards to the Measure X Youth Centers was rereleased on January 24, 2023.  It closed 
on February 16, 2023. 
 
Multiple submissions were received and the evaluation process has commenced. A selection is 
expected to be made on March 23, 2023. The details of the award of contract are anticipated to be 
released in April 2023. 
 
   
 

For any questions, please contact LaTosha Stockholm, Workforce Services Specialist & CCWorks 
Program Manager at 925-671-4541  email at lstockholm@ehsd.cccounty.us  

U1 


	03-14-23 YC Agenda Draft
	Youth Committee Charter

	P1 - Presenter Intro - Sabrina Villaro and Eyana Rodgers
	RE: Presenter Bios - Health Services Health Ambassador Program

	1-10-23 Youth Com Meeting Minutes draft
	D1 - Teleconf Options Under Brown Act
	RE: Teleconferencing Options Under the Brown Act
	On February 1, 2023, County Counsel notified the Board of Supervisors (BOS) that once the statewide state of emergency is lifted on February 28, 2023, the BOS and Board-appointed bodies, such as the Workforce Development Board and its subcommittees, m...
	 New Brown Act teleconferencing rules.  Board members may attend remotely for "just cause" or due to "emergency circumstances." Certain legal requirements must be met and members may attend remotely a limited number of times per year.
	o For just cause, the member must notify the body before or at the start of the meeting, citing: 1) caregiving obligations, 2) contagious illness, 3) disability, or 4) travel on official business.
	o For emergencies, the member must submit a short description of the physical or family medical emergency, and the body must take action on the request at the meeting. It must be approved by majority vote. The requestor may not vote.
	o Body must provide a two-way audiovisual platform and the member must participate through both audio and visual technology.
	o Member must disclose whether individuals at least 18 years old are in the room.
	o At least a quorum must participate in person.
	o Remote option limited to two meetings per individual per calendar year, and a member may not use this option more than three consecutive months or 20% of meetings.
	o All votes must be taken by roll call.
	o The agenda need not be posted at the remote location, include the address of the remote location, or provide for public access to the remote location.
	 Traditional Brown Act teleconference option.  Board members may participate in meetings by teleconference if the location from where they are participating is listed on the agenda and other legal requirements are met:
	o At least a quorum must participate from locations in the County.
	o Each teleconference location and meeting location must be shown on agenda for the meeting. In addition, agenda must provide opportunity for members of the public to
	give comment from each teleconference location.
	o In addition to the usual agenda-posting agenda locations and the County website, an agenda must be posted at each teleconference location at least 96 hours in advance of the meeting under the County's Better Government Ordinance, or at least 24 in a...
	o Each teleconference location must be open and accessible to members of the public.
	o All votes taken during a teleconference meeting must be by roll call.
	See a side-by-side comparison of requirements, see the table “Teleconference Meeting Participation Options” in County Counsel’s memo, attached.
	NOTE: Beginning January 1, 2026, only the traditional Brown Act teleconference rules will be available.
	ATTACHMENT:
	D1a - "Teleconferencing Options Under the Brown Act for Members of County Boards, Commissions, and Committees," memo from Office of the County Counsel, Contra Costa, to the Board of Supervisors

	D2- Wex-Internships Policy Review
	D2a Youth WEX policy - 2016
	WORKFORCE POLICY BULLETIN    #01-16 - NEW
	TO:  Contracted Service Providers
	FROM:  Stephen Baiter, Executive Director
	Workforce Development Board
	SUBJECT:        Youth WEX Policy
	Disclaimer
	This policy is based on an initial reading of the statute, the Notice of Proposed Rulemaking released by USDOL as well as guidance issued by California EDD. This policy is subject to change as additional federal regulations and state guidance are rele...
	Citations & References:
	WIOA Public Law 113-128) Sections 3, 107, 116, 123, 128, and 129(c) (2) (E) and (c) (4)
	Title 20 CFR NPRM 681.600 and 681.640


	D3- Youth Voice in Decision Making
	D4- Presentations and Field Visits
	D4a Presenter List -Orgs
	Sheet1

	U1 - Youth Ctr Update 3-14-23 RFI 744

